BELGOROD AND BELGOROD REGION

Pearl of Russia's Black Soil Region
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The Belgorod Region is located in the South of European Russia within 49 15' and 51 20' of the North latitude. It borders on Kursk and Voronezh Regions and it has an external frontier with Ukraine.

The region covers 17.130 sq. km and stretches 182 km from North to South and 266 km from East to West. The Region's population is 1 450 000 people. The Regional Center - Belgorod is 700 km South of Moscow.

Belgorod is one of Russia's oldest towns dating back to 1596. The name "Belgorod" translates to "White City", a reference to the chalk hills upon which the city sits . It was founded as a fortress on the right bank of the then navigable Seversky Donets River.

Belgorod is one of the oldest towns in the country. It has a long and interesting history which dates back to the ancient times.People settled on the Seversky Donets River in the Stone and Bronze Ages.The first settlements of Slavs were established in the 11th century .

Belgorod is first mentioned in the annals of history in the year 1237. Originally it was a very small settlement of Slavs atop the chalky hill overlooking the Seversky Donets River which was then a deep and navigable river. The White Hill gave its name to the future fortress town into which the little settlement had grown up by the 16th century.

 In 1596, under Tsar Fyodor, a fortress was built on the  south boundary of the Russian State. It was of great strate​gic importance as it repulsed the attacks of the Tatar and Mongol Lordes. Tha fortress “whitetown” was founded by the Russian army chiefs (voivodes) Princes Michael Nosdrevaty and Andrew Volkonsky.

On June 16, 1596, the Russian tsar sent his people to the Seversky  Donets  River to find a site for a fortress. June  the 16, 1596, is considered to be Belgorod’s birthday.

The site for a fortress on the right bank of the Seversky Donets River was well chosen by the Russian builders.

Here ia a plan of the Old Belgorod Fortress. The central part of the fortress was the Kremlin with its 8 towers. It was fortified by two belts of fortifications. The outer fortification (1,438 metres long) consisted of a rampart, wooden walls with a fosse (11 metres wide) and 9 towers. The inner fortification   (940 metres long), which was 135 metres away from the Kremlin and 175 metres from the outer fortifi​cation, consisted of a rampart, wooden walls with a fosse (11 metres wide) and 7 towers. In the North and the West the  area was covered with an oak forest which made the fortress almost inaccessible.

The people of Whitetown were occupied with fishing and hunting wild deer, brown bears and wild goats.

 After the Polish and Lithuanian invasion of the 17th century Belgorod was destroyed and all its wooden buildings were burnt.                                    

In 1626 the new fortress of Belgorod was built on the left bank of the Seversky Donets River,  opposite the old site.

Here is a plan of the Belgorod Fortress in the 17th  century.  

          The Kremlin, with its 8 towers made of oak, was built at a distance of 622 metres from the river. It was fortified by an oak fence with 15 towers which had three gates: the Vozhersky Gate in the North, the Donetsky Gate in the South and Rasumnitsky Gate in the East. The area 400 meters wide formed a defence against the raiding enemy.

It should be noted here that the new site of the fort​ress was rather inconvenient; it was low and swampy. In spring the fortress was overflown and the wooden buildings beca​me rotten.
           During the reign of tsar Michael Romanov the nobleman N.T. Odcevsky and V.P. Sheremetjev were sent to find a new  site for the fortress of Belgorod.

Here is a plan of the third fortress of Belgorod.

            In fact, you can see all the three sites for the Belgorod fort​ress in it: the Belgorod Fortress on the right bank of the Seversky Donets River (the end of the 16th century and the beginning of the 17th century); the Belgorod Fortress on the left bank of the Seversky Donets River (the beginning and the second half of the 17th century); the Belgorod Fortress on the right bank of the Seversky Donets River again (the second half of the  17th century and the end of the 18 century).

            The building of the  new fortress on the right bank of  the river began in 1650. It was to be situated between the  rivers Seversky Donets and Veselitsa. Belgorod had been  built by 1651 under the supervision of the army chief (voivode) Prince B.A.Repnin. The wooden fortification was 1,298 metres in circumference  with 10 towers and a fosse in  front. Later on a bridge of 265 sagenes long (a sagene is equal  to2,13 metres) was erected across the Seversky Donets River. At the end of the 17th century and the beginning of the 18th century Belgorod had a monastery of St. Nicholas founded by order of Boris Godunov in 1599, 9 churches , and 353 houses. Gradually Belgorod grew stronger and stronger and in 1727 it became the chief administrative centre of the region comprising the Belgorod, the Oryol and the Kursk provinces with their 33 towns and cities and a population of 1,146 thousand inhabitants.              


 In 1730 Empress Katherine II of all Russian presented Belgorod with its own coat of arms.

Here you can see  pictures of the coat of arms  and the flag of Belgo​rod.
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In 1766 many wooden houses, mainly in the central part of Belgorod, were burnt by fire.Two years later a general plan for reconstruction was approved of by Katherine II.
Here is a wall sheet giving the dates of all these changes.





In 1658 Belgorod was declared the centre of the military administrative district.

In 1708 Belgorod belonged to the Kiev province.

In 1727 Belgorod got the status of the centre of a large province (comprising the Oryol and the Sevsk, or the Kursk, provinces, including 33 towns and cities with a population of 1,146 thousand inhabitants).

But in 1779 the Belgorod province was abolished and Bel​gorod became a district centre.

In 1785, after the abolition of the Crimea Kingdom, Bel​gorod ceased to be a fortress.

Before and during the Second World War Belgorod was con​sidered to be a district centre belonging to the Kursk region.

In 1954 a special decree was signed by the Presidium of the Supreme Soviet of the USSR according to which Belgo​rod became the centre of the Belgorod region, separate from the Kursk region.                                 

The Belgorod region has given Russia a number of famous  people in various fields of life - great revolutionaries, public men, military leaders, men of letters, musicians, painters, actors, scientists and doctors. The  “first Decemberist” Vladimir Raevsky, the Russian public man, philo​sopher and poet Nicholas Stankevich, the world-famous traveller, poet, musician and educator Vasily Eroshenko, the talented Russian actor Michael Shchepkin, the well-known composers Stepan Degtyarev and Gavriil Lomakin, the violinist and edu​cator Nicholas Erdenko, the artists Alexander and Vasily Khvostenkovs, the writer and journalist Arnold Gessen, one of  the founders of the science of social hygiene Dr.Alexander  Nikitin - these are just a few to mention.

On June 22, 1941,the Great Patriotic War broke out.

On the second day of the war martial law was declared in Bel​gorod.

The fascist invaders came twice to occupy Belgorod in the course of three years.For the first time Belgorod was occupied on October 24, 1941, after a heavy battle at the village of Streletskoye in which the Red Army was defeated.

The invaders brought distruction, suffering, death and enslavement to the occupied land. Under the yoke of German fascists life was full of horror .On February 6, 1942, the

fascists shot to kill 2.ooo civil people, including child​ren and women, on the bank of the Seversky Donets River.

 However the people of Belgorod could not be terrified. People rose up to liberate their land.On the occupied territory six partisan detachments came  into being. They began to fight courageously against tha fascist aggressors, bringing much damage to them and helping the Red Army to repulse the attacks of the invaders.

Here you can read  the passage describing the activity of the Belgorod partisan detachments.

On February 9, 1943, Belgorod was liberated by the Bed Army Divisions (of the Voronezh Front), which had to leave the town a month later, on March 18, 1943.The German fascists returned to Belgorod and remained in it till the summer of 1943 when a great battle was fought at Prokhorovka. More than 4 million men over 69000 guns, 13000 tanks, 12000 aircraft took part in the fighting which lasted 50 days and nights (July 5 - August 23, 1943).        

On July 12, 1943, Soviet pilots made 1300 operational flights. Among the Soviet pilots defending Prokhorovka in the sky was the future cosmonaut G.T. Beregovoy.

 At Prokhorovka the fascists lost 400 tanks and over 10000 soldiers and officers.        
The victory in tha battle of Kursk Bulge was of great importance as it completed a turning point (after the Sta​lingrad Battle) in the Great Patriotic War.

According to Marshal G.K. Zhukov, "the battle of Kursk Bulge was one of the greatest battles in the Great Patriotic War and World War II as a whole. Hitler's operation "Citadel" ended in Failure. The enemy lost half a million soldiers and officers 1500   tanks, 3000 guns and more than 3700 aircraft.

As Marshal A.M. Vasilevsky put it, Hitler's Germany was faced with the forthcoming catastrophe.

 On August 5,1943, Moscow fired a salute in honour of the liberation of Belgorod and Oryol for the first time during the war years.

Here is a picture of the Moscow Salute fired on August 5 , 1943.  Belgorod is justly called the "Town of the First Salute". Since then it became a tradition to mark every victory of the Red Army by firing salute in its honour. 

There are some pictures of Kurskaya Duga nowadays:
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To commemorate the battle of Kursk Bulge the Kursk Bulge  Diorama Museum was opened in the centre of Belgorod on August 3, 1987.
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The canvas of the Diorama is 67 metres long and 15 metres high , and it has an area of 1,005 sq. metres. A group of the outstanding battle-painters, such as N. Y. Boot, G. K. Sevostjanov, V. N. Shcherbakov, M. A. Sychov took part in creating the canvas. 

Here you can see a picture of the Diorama and  a  picture of the canvas.

Like many other Soviet cities and towns, Belgorod was razed to the ground du​ring the Great Patriotic War. When the Red Army entered Belgorod, it found there only 150 inhabitants alive out of 34, 500 before the War. The town lay in ruin.

 As soon as Belgorod was liberated, restoration work began. Life on the devastated land began to be reborn. Already in September 1943 the town had a population of 8,000.The inhabitants of Belgorod began its reconstruction enthusiastically. The destroyed industrial enterprises were reconstructed, a lot of new ones were build up, agriculture was reorganized-that was all done in the shortest time possible.

At about 100 000 people were awarded orders and medals and 180 people were awarded the title of the Hero of the Soviet Union for displaying courage and heroism in the Battle of Kursk Bulge.

Blocks of beautiful buildings rose up in the town and thousands of people moved into new homes.

Nowadays Belgorod is one of the administrative, industrial and cultural centres of the Russian Federation, in the south of the Black Earth Zone. Since January 6,1954, it has been a regional centre of the Belgorod region, separate from the Kursk region into which it was included before. The region’s population is over 1 450 000 people.

As an industrial centre, Belgorod has 60 industrial enterprises, including enterprises, including the Boiler Plant, the Plant of Metallic Construction, the  Cement Plant, the Vitamin Plant, the Furniture Factory, the  Clothes Factory and others.

Belgorod has several higher educational  centres  and  a network of 48 high schools and 8 specialized technical colleges and schools. There are  3 academies (the State Agricultural  Academy, the Technological Academy of Construction  Materials and the  Commercial Cooperative Academy, and  the Teachers’ Training Institute).

Belgorod State Teacher Training  Institute was founded in 1939 and in 1967 it was named after M.S. Olminsky (1863-1933) , an outstanding revolutionary and a man of letters. Now it is called  Belgorod State University.

Here is a picture of the University.  
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The typical landscape of the Belgorod region was the forest. In the past oak forest probably covered the greater part of region  giving place to large stretches of steppe in the south-east. In the course of the centuries the forest area was progressively diminished. Natural woodlands about 300,000 hectares. The greatest density of woodland occurs in the Shebekinsky and the Borisovsky districts.

The most common trees are oak, ash, maple, lime and, in low-lying fenland, birth and asp. Widespread are also birdcherry trees, rowan-trees, wild apple-trees and pear-trees.

In the southern and eastern parts of the region patches of woods (firs and pines) are found.

There are various types of wild vegetation including the natural flora of woods, fens and steppes. It consists mainly of feather, grasses, flowering plants.

The famous Yamskaya Steppe in the Gubkinsky district is a real museum of nature.

It should be noted here that out of the area of 2.7 millions hectares in the Belgorod region, more than 1.6 million are under cultivation and 400 000 hectares are pasture and meadow.

The climate is mild and temperate. You  can see that the landscapes of our region are picturesque.
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The fauna of the Belgorod region includes 60 species of fish and 250 of birds.

Some of the larger mammals, including the brown bear and the lynx, have become extinct. With goats and boars, that were once numerous, are now found in the Borisovsky reservation.

The glory of the region is the elk which has been on the increase for several decades.

       The fur-bearing animals, such as the marten, the polecat, the mink, the badger, the stoat, the weasel, are really seen and protected. 

Of the rodents the most numerous are susliks and mice. They are considered injurious to agriculture. 

River and lake  fish include mirror carp, bream, tench, roach, perch, ruff. Pike-perch fishing can be carried on in the Oskol River. In some big rivers there is sheet-fish and eel . The latter is very rare . 

The world of birds is particularly rich and varied, including many song-birds. Some  species are resident, others are regular visitors to the region. Sparrows usually predominate near houses, flocks of starlings gather at certain seasons.

Games birds include partridges, quails, ducks ,woodcocks, snipes and others. They are  specially preserved. There are  also many kinds of insects, most of them small, in the Belgorod region.

The city has a Drama Theatre, named after the great Russian actor Michael Shchepkin, a Puppet Show Theatre, a Philarmonic Society, several concert halls and cinemas, a lot of libraries, among them the Regional Research Library.

If you are staying in Belgorod for a few days you’ll have no difficulty whatever in finding somewhere to spend an enjoyable evening.

The townspeople of Belgorod are proud of the town they live in, its past and present, and they do their best to make it more beautiful.

                                                   The student of the 11th Form Andrei Chulkov ,

                                                   an English teacher Larisa Sergeeva.

